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Our Heritage
Our Founder Bob Evans has often said, “Quality is long

remembered after price is forgotten” and “Everybody

is somebody at Bob Evans Farms.” Beliefs like these

formed our company and engrained our core values

from day one. We continue to live by them today.

Brand Builders

• Win together as a team

• Consistently drive sales growth

• Improve margins with an eye on customer satisfaction

• Be the BEST* at operations execution

• Increase returns on invested capital

*Bob Evans Special Touch, or BEST, is the company’s internal branding that
defines our core values of teamwork; quality, service and cleanliness;
integrity; sincerity; tradition; consistency; honesty; and safety. The
initiative is designed to encourage and reward employees for going above
and beyond expectations of coworkers, partners, stockholders and customers.
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Overall, diluted earnings per share for the year were

$1.52 ($1.34 excluding net gains on asset sales and other

special items), compared with $1.04 in fiscal 2005. This

improvement came under the remarkable leadership

of Larry Corbin, interim chief executive officer and

president, who came out of retirement to help restore

profitability. Larry has been a tremendous

mentor to me as I have transitioned into

my new role, and I look forward to his con-

tinued counsel on our board of directors.

In our restaurant segment, Bob Evans

Restaurant margins improved sequentially

from our poor performance in the first quar-

ter with significant reductions in food and

labor costs – without compromising cus-

tomer satisfaction. We are using that progress

as our springboard to improve same-store sales at Bob

Evans Restaurants which remain a challenge. Mimi’s Café

continued to perform well and successfully expanded into

a number of new regional markets across the United States.

In food products, sales trends remained strong and oper-

ating income rebounded as raw material costs declined.

For the year, operating income in the restaurant

segment rose 22 percent (11 percent excluding special

items), on a 9 percent overall sales increase. The profit

increase primarily reflects a 30 basis-point improvement

in food cost for the year, as well as significantly lower

labor costs in the second half of the year. Same-store sales

at Bob Evans Restaurants were down 1.6 percent, although

the trendline improved over the course of the year.

While Bob Evans Restaurants continue to face a difficult

economic environment in our core heartland markets,

some of our direct competitors are outperforming us

in these markets. Our primary focus is to improve

same-store sales by delivering a superior

combination of great homestyle food and an

outstanding dining experience at reasonable

prices – and to leverage them with stronger

marketing programs. This accomplishment

will be possible in part due to the spotlight

we put on operations, as well as the incred-

ibly friendly employee culture in which I

have been warmly welcomed and which is

demonstrated daily through our Bob Evans

Special Touch (BEST) initiative.

Consumer research conducted by independent firms

during the year demonstrates that the Bob Evans concept

remains well-positioned relative to its traditional break-

fast-oriented competitors, ranking high in key attributes

such as food quality and customer service. We continue

to work hard on further quality enhancements that will

help us sharpen the positioning of our brand, focusing on

more unique, high-quality comfort foods.

As we look to restaurant growth, we have to expand with

a focus on the quality, not just the quantity, of openings.

We slowed Bob Evans’ expansion pace in fiscal 2006 to

It has been my honor and privilege to join Bob Evans Farms, Inc. as chief

executive officer at the beginning of fiscal 2007. It is my pleasure to report to

you, our valued stockholders, the progress that the company made during

the second half of fiscal 2006 which resulted in a year of improved financial

performance for Bob Evans Farms, Inc.

To my fellow stockholders:

�

�

Operating Income
(in millions)

$1
4.

0
$2

2.
6

$2
3.

6
$2

5.
2

$1
1.

5
$1

3.
1

$1
9.

2$2
3.

1
Q

1’
05

Q
2’

05

Q
3’

05

Q
4’

05

Q
1’

06

Q
2’

06

Q
3’

06

Q
4’

06



open 20 new restaurants, compared with 37 the previous

year. We will further reduce new openings to approximately

10 in fiscal 2007 as we intensify efforts to improve our

performance in existing restaurants. During the year we

closed 24 underperforming restaurants, including our

remaining Owens Restaurants. These closings clearly

strengthened our restaurant portfolio by improving overall

returns and freeing up resources for use elsewhere,

including paying off short-term debt. We sold a number

of properties during the year, including some closed

restaurants and land, with proceeds of $31 million, which

resulted in a net gain of $8 million.

Mimi’s Café, which we acquired in July 2004, had

another solid year and has now achieved same-store-sales

increases in 43 of the last 44 quarters. In fiscal 2006, Mimi’s

same-store sales rose 1.6 percent. Mimi’s is a more upscale

“family casual” concept, with guest checks in the $10

range and average unit sales of nearly $3.5 million annually.

We opened 10 Mimi’s Cafés during the year (including

six in new markets), with a total of 102 at year-end.

Most Mimi’s Cafés that opened in fiscal 2006 in new

markets have met or exceeded average sales volume for the

brand, which demonstrates the broad acceptance of the

concept across the United States. In fiscal 2007, we currently

expect to open approximately 14 Mimi’s Cafés.While we have

already capitalized on some obvious administrative syner-

gies,we believe both Mimi’s Cafés and Bob Evans Restaurants

can further benefit by continuing to work together as one

team to leverage the best practices each has developed in

various areas, yet continue to operate separately.

In the food products segment, sales for the year

increased 8 percent and operating income rose 62 percent

(nearly doubled excluding special items) from the previous

year. Operating margins benefited as average hog costs in

the company’s sausage business declined 15 percent, to

$43 per hundredweight, following two years of substantial

increases. In addition, pounds sold of comparable products

were up 10 percent for the year, mostly due to strong

growth in refrigerated side dishes. Sales also continue to

build for our microwaveable slow-roasted dinners,

including turkey breast, pork roast and beef pot roast.

Both sides of our business are well-positioned to capi-

talize on two consumer trends that will not change

anytime soon. Americans are strapped for time, and they

are looking for ways to stretch their budgets. By cooking

for them – whether literally in our restaurants, or through

our convenience retail products – we can meet their needs

with delicious homestyle food at reasonable prices. We

already have strong regional market shares and excellent

consumer awareness of our premium brands. The growth

opportunities are self-evident; our biggest challenge is to

remain disciplined and focused on profitability as we add

new products and points of distribution.

Since joining the company, two things have become

obvious to me: across the board, the team of Bob Evans,

Mimi’s and Owens employees is solid, energetic and com-

mitted to success; and the brands that we represent stand

for tradition, quality and family. One of my first jobs as

your new chief executive officer is to bring these strengths

together to drive profitable growth and enhanced stock-

holder value. I am confident that we will win as a team,

and I look forward to sharing our progress in the quarters

and years to come.

Sincerely,

Steve Davis

Chief Executive Officer�

�



One of the board’s most important decisions

during fiscal 2006 was the selection of our new

chief executive officer, Steve Davis. This was the

culmination of an extensive process that entailed

retaining an executive search firm, finalizing the

search criteria, interviewing a number of highly

qualified candidates and making a final decision.

Steve Davis has a multi-faceted background and

is uniquely qualified for his new role, with more

than 20 years of experience in restaurant opera-

tions and packaged goods marketing. Most

recently, at Yum! Brands, he was president of Long

John Silver’s and A&W All-American Food

Restaurants, with responsibility for more than

2,200 systemwide locations. Previously, Steve

served in a variety of executive positions with

Pizza Hut and Kraft General Foods. Throughout

his career, he has played an integral part in build-

ing and maintaining strong brands. I am confi-

dent that we made the right choice given his expe-

rience, but more importantly based on the energy

that we have witnessed at the company since the

moment he entered the door.

Finally, I would like to thank Larry Corbin on

behalf of the board and all of our stockholders and

employees for his contributions during the year.

Larry’s primary focus was on his successful efforts

to improve Bob Evans Restaurants’ profitability. In

addition, he re-energized all of our employees at a

difficult time for the company. He helped rally

both our pride in Bob Evans’ rich heritage and our

optimism about its future growth potential. We

wish Larry all the best in his retirement, but also

look forward to his ongoing contributions as a

board member.

Sincerely,

Robert E.H. Rabold

Chairman of the Board

To my fellow stockholders:

�

�

On Aug. 9, 2005, the Bob Evans Farms, Inc. board of directors elected Larry Corbin as chief

executive officer and president on an interim basis, following the resignation of the former chairman of

the board and chief executive officer. I had previously served as lead independent director, but that same

day, the board elected me as chairman of the board and determined that the two roles would remain

split going forward. While Bob Evans Farms has always had a strong commitment to good corporate

governance, the board decided that carving out the nonexecutive chairman’s role on an ongoing basis

would enhance our governance practices, help ensure the independence of the board from senior

management and facilitate the active participation of the independent directors in the board process.



Leadership in Action

Dan Evans (top photo, right), board member and retired chairman
of Bob Evans Farms, Inc., presents a Gentleman Farmer Deed
to Steve Davis (left), chief executive officer, on his first day
with the company in May 2006. The deed grants one square foot
of land on the Bob Evans Farm in Rio Grande, Ohio, to Steve.

� In December 2005, Roger Williams (middle photo, left) con-
gratulates Food Products Salesman Harry Cahill (right) for being
awarded the Silver Stetson, the highest honor in the Bob Evans
foods division. � Larry Corbin (bottom photo, left), retired
chief executive officer and president, and Mary Cusick (right),
senior vice president of restaurant marketing, celebrate Larry’s
return to the company at the September 2005 annual meeting.



At Bob Evans Restaurants, breakfast is our heritage,

and dinner is our upside opportunity. Our goal is to

increase same-store sales by capitalizing on both of these

day parts through innovation, execution and branding.

We are committed to offering unique new products

that deliver excellent value and fit the brand – like our

new Country Benedicts which were introduced in July

2006. Requiring no new ingredients in store, the three

benedict varieties are excellent examples of our menu

simplification that we embarked upon in fiscal 2006.

Whether it’s serving new products to new faces or

having an old favorite ready for our most loyal guests,

our restaurant operations group is dedicated to deliv-

ering flawless service and high-quality food – for both

dine-in and carryout. One way we plan to improve

our execution is through the Certified Trainer

Food from the Heartland

Delicious meals like Slow-Roasted

Turkey Breast (left) and our new

Sausage Country Benedict (right)

bring back memories of food first

enjoyed at our original restaurant,

our Sausage Tent at the Ohio State

Fair and the annual Farm Festival

held at our farm in southeastern

Ohio (all shown above).



Program which we anticipate taking systemwide in the fall 

of 2006 to enhance employee performance.

This year, we will also be sharpening our brand and 

communicating how our brand fits in consumers’ lives based 

on in-depth branding research that we conducted during 

the first quarter of fiscal 2007. Going forward, we want to

deliver our heritage and core values of yesterday with 

relevance for today and the future.

™





Mimi’s Café provides consumers with

delicious food and an exceptional value,

and we have now proven that it will travel

well throughout the United States – far

beyond the original markets out west.

Nearly every restaurant that opened during

the fiscal year outside of Mimi’s core

California markets is operating at sales

volumes at or above the Mimi’s average.

The Mimi’s team has a remarkable track

record with same-store sales growth in 43

of the last 44 quarters.

To deliver continued success, we are

maintaining our positioning as an “every-

day luxury,” with a strong emphasis on

sustaining our culinary leadership, unique

flavor combinations, freshly prepared

foods and generous portions.

For fiscal 2007, we are in the process of

testing several business building initiatives

at Mimi’s, including curbside carryout to

increase the proportion of carryout sales.

These initiatives are designed to profitably

deliver sales as we continue to grow the

Mimi’s concept.

Mouth-watering Food
with Flair

With flavorful, fresh food –– like

the Thai Chicken Wrap (upper

left) and Citrus Salmon (lower

left), every day is a celebration

at Mimi ’s Cafe. President Russ

Bendel (below) gives a toast to

commemorate the Columbus, Ohio,

Mimi ’s opening in June 2006.

‘

During fiscal 2006, Mimi’s Café was one

of the first full-service, casual restaurants to

offer a completely trans-fat-free menu – a feat

made possible largely because of our emphasis

on products made fresh on the premises.



Under the Bob Evans and Owens brand

names, our retail business continues to

grow through increased volume, new

products and geographical expansion.

Providing a solution for consumers who

are strapped for time, our microwaveable

convenience items, including side dishes

and slow-roasted entrées, have experienced

tremendous volume growth during the

past year. Our mashed potatoes and

macaroni & cheese side dishes have quickly

become a family staple for many of our

consumers and open the door for future

offerings such as our new baked beans and

chicken salad. Our product development

and production teams are committed to

continuing to bring safe, high-quality

products to market that are appropriate for

our brand and our consumers’ lifestyles.

We are also experiencing growth geo-

graphically with many of our products,

particularly our side dishes, thanks to part-

nerships with successful retailers. In early

fiscal 2007, we quadrupled our presence in

Food Lion grocery stores and tripled the

number of BJ’s Wholesale Club stores we

are in. Our products are also now in

central Florida through Super Wal-Mart

stores. We look forward to profitable

distribution growth in the future through

collaboration with grocery stores.

�

�

Food Products

�



Food with Farm Roots

Our founder, Bob Evans (below), created
Bob Evans Sausage with one thing in mind:
quality. Today, that same excellence is
found in our convenience products,
including microwaveable mashed potatoes
and macaroni & cheese (opposite top) and
slow-roasted entrees (lower right).

‘



Mimi’s Cafés

Mimi’s Cafés

Arizona 10
Arkansas 1
California 52
Colorado 7
Florida 8
Georgia 1
Kansas 2
Missouri 2
Nebraska 1

Nevada 4
New Mexico 1
Ohio 1
Oklahoma 2
South Carolina 1
Tennessee 1
Texas 4
Utah 4

Total 102

Bob Evans Restaurants

For assistance locating one of our Bob Evans Restaurants, please check
the location guide on our Web site, www.bobevans.com.

For assistance locating one of our Mimi’s Cafés, please check the location
guide on our Web site, www.mimiscafe.com.

Bob Evans Restaurants

Delaware 7
Florida 50
Illinois 18
Indiana 61
Kansas 4
Kentucky 23
Maryland 28
Michigan 52
Mississippi 1
Missouri 24

New Jersey 6
New York 8
North Carolina 15
Ohio 195
Pennsylvania 38
South Carolina 5
Tennessee 5
Virginia 18
West Virginia 29

Total 587

Locations
More than 50 years ago, Bob Evans Farms, Inc. started on a farm in southeastern Ohio. Through

consistent growth and acquisitions, the company now operates restaurants in 30 states and distributes

a full line of grocery products to approximately 75 percent of the United States. We plan to continue

profitable growth, while remaining true to our farm roots.



Bob Evans Food Products Markets
Owens Food Products Markets
Bob Evans and Owens Food Products Markets
Production Plants / Distribution Center

Galva, Ill.
Retail Processing Plant
Produces roll sausage
and sausage links

Hillsdale, Mich.
Retail and Foodservice
Processing Plant
Produces roll sausage;
sausage links and patties;
and grilling sausage

Bidwell, Ohio
Retail Processing Plant
Produces grilling sausage;
sausage patties; and
fully cooked sausage
links and patties

Springfield, Ohio
Foodservice
Processing Plant
Produces soups; gravies;
and sausage links

Springfield, Ohio
Distribution Center

Xenia, Ohio
Retail Processing Plant
Produces roll sausage
and sausage links

Bob Evans Food Products

Richardson, Texas
Retail and Foodservice
Processing Plant
Produces roll sausage
and burritos

Sulphur Springs, Texas
Retail and Foodservice
Processing Plant
Produces convenience
sandwich items

Owens Food Products

Something Good Wherever You Go

Randy Hicks (above, left), executive vice

president of Bob Evans Restaurants,

proudly serves cake to employees at the

Fairborn, Ohio, location during the July

2005 Restaurant of the Year presentation.

Serving high-quality food, such as the Bob

Evans Slow-Roasted Chicken Pot Pie (top)

and the Mimi ’s Cafe Original Spinach &

Artichoke Dip (left), enables employees to

accomplish such achievements.

‘



Race For The Cure

Chief Financial Officer Don Radkoski (center
photo, left) initiated fundraising efforts for
the Susan G. Komen Breast Cancer Foundation.
Under his leadership, team spirit and a
sense of pride grew along with the employees ’
donation. Pictured above and left is Team
Bob Evans on race day –– May 20, 2006.

Every year, we reach out to youth, education,

health-care and community organizations, which

are a vital part of our Bob Evans family.

This year, because too many members of our

family have been diagnosed with breast cancer, our

employees decided we had to do something positive

to make a difference. This passionate effort, named

“BEST for the Cure,” started at our corporate office

but quickly spread to many of our Bob Evans

Restaurants. The initial goal was to raise $30,000 for

the Susan G. Komen Breast Cancer Foundation.

�Supporting Our Community

During the 14-week grassroots fundraising and

education effort, employees raised money through

events such as bake sales, a car wash, garage

sales and even an autograph session with Founder

Bob Evans. We more than tripled our goal for a

donation of $102,000 – proof that when Bob Evans

employees work together for a common goal, they

deliver results!

For more information about our corporate giving

program, visit the Philanthropy section of our

Web site, www.bobevans.com.



Consolidated Financial Review
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share amounts

2006 2005(a) 2004 2003 2002

Operating Results
Net sales $ 1,584,819 $ 1,460,195 $ 1,197,997 $ 1,091,337 $ 1,061,846
Operating income 85,357 66,906 113,301 117,133 103,863
Income before income taxes 73,712 57,672 111,990 115,503 100,836
Income taxes 18,938 20,704 39,955 40,426 33,154
Net income 54,774 36,968 72,035 75,077 67,682
Earnings per share of common stock:

Basic $1.53 $1.05 $2.07 $2.13 $1.94
Diluted $1.52 $1.04 $2.03 $2.10 $1.91

Financial Position
Working capital $ (77,083) $ (124,349) $ (98,375) $ (93,607) $ (85,794)
Property, plant and equipment - net 967,717 949,906 783,397 704,442 648,179
Total assets 1,209,183 1,183,986 868,233 784,591 721,973
Debt:

Short-term 4,000 47,000 38,620 36,255 31,750
Long-term 206,333 210,333 24,333 28,333 32,333

Stockholders’ equity 704,456 652,831 630,163 560,919 521,365

Supplemental Information for the Year
Capital expenditures $ 112,860 $ 139,587 $ 141,037 $ 106,268 $ 97,006
Depreciation and amortization $ 76,062 $ 66,835 $ 50,106 $ 44,150 $ 41,974
Weighted-average shares outstanding:

Basic 35,691 35,315 34,878 35,203 34,868
Diluted 35,944 35,644 35,513 35,813 35,490

Cash dividends declared per share $0.48 $0.48 $0.48 $0.44 $0.39
Common stock market closing prices:

High $30.93 $31.28 $34.08 $32.87 $31.18
Low $21.09 $20.31 $23.26 $21.22 $15.69

Supplemental Information at Year-End
Employees 50,810 52,558 42,035 40,446 39,990
Stockholders 32,296 33,871 35,044 36,977 36,595
Market price per share at closing $28.88 $20.40 $30.73 $24.91 $29.59
Book value per share $19.55 $18.44 $17.88 $16.26 $14.77

(a) On July 7, 2004, the company acquired SWH Corporation (d/b/a Mimi’s Café), whose results of operations are included from the date of acquisition.

15



April 28, 2006 April 29, 2005

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and equivalents $ 16,727 $ 5,267
Accounts receivable 16,131 14,707
Inventories 28,058 24,416
Deferred income taxes 14,545 10,623
Prepaid expenses 1,604 2,226
Assets held for sale 5,337 7,040

Total Current Assets 82,402 64,279

Property, Plant and Equipment
Land 246,740 249,623
Buildings and improvements 784,729 738,605
Machinery and equipment 375,197 357,341
Construction in progress 11,492 13,898

1,418,158 1,359,467
Less accumulated depreciation 450,441 409,561

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 967,717 949,906

Other Assets
Deposits and other 2,776 2,698
Long-term investments 17,857 19,278
Deferred income taxes 24,105 33,044
Goodwill 57,729 57,364
Other intangible assets 56,597 57,417

Total Other Assets 159,064 169,801
$ 1,209,183 $ 1,183,986

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 4,000 $ 4,000
Line of credit 0    43,000
Accounts payable 25,486 24,422
Dividends payable 4,324 4,249
Federal and state income taxes 20,736 21,763
Accrued wages and related liabilities 30,153 23,767
Self insurance 20,116 16,340
Other accrued expenses 54,670 51,087

Total Current Liabilities 159,485 188,628

Long-Term Liabilities
Deferred compensation 18,001 17,046
Deferred income taxes 102,041 99,126
Deferred rent 18,867 16,022
Long-term debt 206,333 210,333

Total Long-Term Liabilities 345,242 342,527

Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares;

issued 42,638,118 shares in 2006 and 2005 426 426
Preferred stock, $500 par value; authorized 1,200 shares;

issued 120 shares in 2006 and 2005 60 60
Capital in excess of par value 151,164 149,593
Retained earnings 670,962 633,372
Treasury stock, 6,604,967 shares in 2006 and 7,234,365 shares in 2005, at cost (118,156) (130,620)

Total Stockholders’ Equity 704,456 652,831
$ 1,209,183 $ 1,183,986

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Dollars in thousands

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements16



Years Ended April 28, 2006; April 29, 2005; and April 30, 2004 2006 2005 2004

Net Sales $1,584,819 $1,460,195 $1,197,997

Cost of sales 469,718 443,226 340,840
Operating wage and fringe benefit expenses 574,347 530,995 418,029
Other operating expenses 258,254 236,811 174,932
Selling, general and administrative expenses 121,081 115,422 100,789
Depreciation and amortization expense 76,062 66,835 50,106

Operating Income 85,357 66,906 113,301

Net interest expense 11,645 9,234 1,311

Income Before Income Taxes 73,712 57,672 111,990

Provisions for income taxes 18,938 20,704 39,955

Net Income $ 54,774 $ 36,968 $ 72,035

Earnings Per Share – Basic $1.53 $1.05 $2.07

Earnings Per Share – Diluted $1.52 $1.04 $2.03

Cash Dividends Per Share $0.48 $0.48 $0.48

Consolidated Statements of Income
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 17



Capital
Common Preferred in Excess Retained Treasury

Stock Stock of Par Value Earnings Stock Total

Stockholders’ Equity at 4/25/03 $426 $60 $150,253 $558,147 $(147,967) $560,919

Net income 72,035 72,035
Dividends declared ($0.48 per share) (16,811) (16,811)
Treasury stock repurchased (3,171) (3,171)
Treasury stock reissued under employee plans (4,058) 17,477 13,419
Tax reductions - employee plans 3,772 3,772

Stockholders’ Equity at 4/30/04 426 60 149,967 613,371 (133,661) 630,163

Net income 36,968 36,968
Dividends declared ($0.48 per share) (16,967) (16,967)
Treasury stock reissued under employee plans (718) 3,041 2,323
Tax reductions - employee plans 344 344

Stockholders’ Equity at 4/29/05 426 60 149,593 633,372 (130,620) 652,831

Net income 54,774 54,774
Dividends declared ($0.48 per share) (17,184) (17,184)
Treasury stock reissued under employee plans 434 12,464 12,898
Tax reductions - employee plans 1,137 1,137

Stockholders’ Equity at 4/28/06 $426 $60 $151,164 $670,962 $(118,156) $704,456

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements18



Years ended April 28, 2006; April 29, 2005; and April 30, 2004 2006 2005 2004

Operating Activities
Net income $ 54,774 $ 36,968 $ 72,035
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 76,062 66,835 50,106
Deferred compensation 955 1,920 4,965
Deferred income taxes 7,932 3,006 7,471
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets (5,405) 3,167 1,269
Gain on long-term investments (1,358) (247) (1,871)
Compensation expense attributable to stock plans 1,775 295 681
Deferred rent 2,845 5,468 0
Cash provided by (used for) current assets

and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,424) 9 (2,298)
Inventories (3,642) (1,489) (2,668)
Prepaid expenses 622 487 311
Accounts payable 1,064 3,430 2,016
Federal and state income taxes 110 10,732 4,427
Accrued wages and related liabilities 6,386 (967) 2,053
Self insurance 3,776 (1,281) (1,800)
Other accrued expenses 3,780 1,718 (138)

Net cash provided by operating activities 148,252 130,051 136,559

Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (112,860) (139,587) (141,037)
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (365) (183,168) 0
Purchase of long-term investments (1,027) (1,674) (2,048)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 30,524 14,747 9,853
Other (78) 1,451 37

Net cash used in investing activities (83,806) (308,231) (133,195)

Financing Activities
Cash dividends paid (17,109) (16,947) (16,376)
Purchase of treasury stock 0 0 (3,171)
Line of credit (43,000) 8,380 2,365
Proceeds from debt issuance 0 372,775 0
Principal payments on long-term debt (4,000) (186,775) (4,000)
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock 11,123 2,028 12,738

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (52,986) 179,461 (8,444)
Increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 11,460 1,281 (5,080)
Cash and equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,267 3,986 9,066
Cash and equivalents at the end of the year $    16,727    $     5,267 $     3,986

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Dollars in thousands

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 19



Note A • Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business: Bob Evans Farms, Inc. (the
“company”) owns and operates 587 full-service, family
restaurants in 19 states. Bob Evans Restaurants are
primarily located in the Midwest, mid-Atlantic and
Southeast regions of the United States. In addition, the
company owns and operates 102 Mimi’s Café casual
restaurants located in 17 states, primarily in California
and other western states. The company is also a leading
producer and distributor of pork sausage and a variety of
complementary homestyle convenience food items under
the Bob Evans and Owens brand names. These food
products are distributed primarily to grocery stores in
the East North Central, mid-Atlantic, Southern and
Southwestern United States. The company acquired SWH
Corporation (d/b/a Mimi’s Café)(“Mimi’s”) in the first
quarter of fiscal 2005 (see Note G).

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the company and its
subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated.

Fiscal Year: The company’s fiscal year ends on the last
Friday in April. References herein to 2006, 2005 and 2004
refer to fiscal years ended April 28, 2006; April 29, 2005;
and April 30, 2004, respectively. Fiscal year 2004 was
comprised of 53 weeks. All other years presented were
comprised of 52 weeks.

Revenue Recognition: Revenue is recognized in the
restaurant segment at the point of sale, other than revenue
from the sale of gift cards and gift certificates, which is
deferred and recognized upon redemption. Revenue in
the food products segment is generally recognized when
products are delivered to the retailer.

Cash Equivalents: The company considers all highly liquid
instruments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventories: The company values inventories at the lower
of first-in, first-out cost or market. Inventory includes
raw materials and supplies ($22,683 in 2006 and $19,167
in 2005) and finished goods ($5,375 in 2006 and $5,249
in 2005).

Assets Held for Sale: In accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets, the company has classified certain land, building
and equipment as “held for sale” in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Depreciation of these assets has ceased and
no gain or loss has been recorded as it is anticipated that
proceeds on sale will exceed the net book value of the
assets. The company believes these assets will be disposed
of within the next 12 months.

Property, Plant and Equipment: The company states
property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
depreciation. The straight-line depreciation method is
used for nearly all capitalized assets, although some assets
purchased prior to 1995 continue to be depreciated using
accelerated methods. Depreciation is calculated at rates
adequate to amortize costs over the estimated useful lives
of buildings and improvements (15 to 25 years) and
machinery and equipment (3 to 10 years). Improvements
to leased properties are depreciated over the shorter of
their useful lives or the lease terms, as defined by SFAS
No. 13, Accounting for Leases. Total depreciation expense
was $71,436; $65,718; and $49,672 in 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

The company has traditionally sold real property via
like-kind exchanges under Internal Revenue Code Section
1031 whereby gains are not recognized for federal income
tax purposes. Historically, the company did not recognize
such gains for financial reporting purposes as they
were deemed to be immaterial. Due to the significance
of the gains in 2006, the company re-examined the
accounting treatment for the sale of real estate and
determined the gains should be recognized for financial
reporting purposes. The company plans to recognize
all such future gains for financial reporting purposes
regardless of materiality and will separately disclose any
significant impact. Consolidated and restaurant segment
results for 2006 include net pre-tax gains of $8,110 on
sales of real property, including vacant land and closed
restaurant locations. The gains are classified as a reduction
of selling, general and administrative expenses.

Long-term Investments: Long-term investments include
assets held under certain deferred compensation
arrangements and investments in income tax credit
limited partnerships. Assets held under certain deferred
compensation arrangements represent the cash surrender
value of company-owned life insurance policies. An
offsetting liability for the amount of the cash surrender
value is included in the deferred compensation liability
on the balance sheet. Investments in income tax credit
limited partnerships are recorded at amortized cost.
The company amortizes the investments to the expected
residual value of the partnerships once the income tax
credits are fully utilized. The amortization period of the
investments matches the respective income tax credit period.

In 2006, the company changed the estimated
residual value assigned to the income tax credit limited
partnerships, resulting in an additional charge to
amortization expense of $3,487.

Goodwill: Goodwill, which represents the cost in excess
of fair market value of net assets acquired, was $57,729
and $57,364 at the end of 2006 and 2005, respectively.
In October 2005, the company paid a purchase price
adjustment to the sellers of Mimi’s that increased the
total cost of the acquisition and therefore goodwill by
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$365. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is not amortized; rather
it is tested for impairment at the beginning of the fourth
quarter each year or on a more frequent basis when events
occur or circumstances change between the annual tests
that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of
the reporting unit below its carrying value (see Note H).

Financial Instruments: The fair values of the company’s
financial instruments approximate their carrying
values at April 28, 2006, and April 29, 2005. The
company does not use derivative financial instruments
for speculative purposes.

Self-insurance: The company is self-insured for most
workers’ compensation, general liability and automotive
liability losses (collectively “casualty losses”), as well as
employee health-care claims. The company maintains
certain stop-loss coverages with third party insurers to limit
its total exposure. The recorded liability associated with
these programs is based on an estimate of the ultimate costs
to be incurred to settle known claims and claims incurred
but not reported as of the balance sheet date. The estimated
liability is not discounted and is based on a number of
assumptions and factors, including historical trends,
actuarial assumptions and economic conditions.

Pre-opening Expenses: Expenditures related to the opening
of new restaurants, other than those for capital assets, are
charged to expense when incurred.

Advertising Costs: The company expenses advertising costs
as incurred. Advertising expense was $40,788; $46,690; and
$42,295 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Cost of Sales: Cost of sales represents food cost in the
restaurant segment and cost of materials in the food prod-
ucts segment. Cash rebates that the company receives from
suppliers are recorded as a reduction of cost of sales in the
periods in which they are earned. The amount of each
rebate is directly related to the quantity of product pur-
chased from the supplier.

Promotional Spending: In its food products segment, the
company engages in promotional (sales incentive) pro-
grams in the form of “off-invoice” deductions, cooperative
advertising programs and coupons. Costs associated with
these programs are classified as a reduction of net sales in
the period in which the sale occurs.

Comprehensive Income: Comprehensive income is the
same as reported net income.

Earnings Per Share: Basic earnings-per-share computations
are based on the weighted-average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period presented.
Diluted earnings per share calculations reflect the assumed
exercise and conversion of outstanding stock options.

The numerator in calculating both basic and
diluted earnings per share for each year is reported net
income. The denominator is based on the following
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
(in thousands):

2006 2005 2004

Basic 35,691 35,315 34,878
Dilutive stock options 253 329 635
Diluted 35,944 35,644 35,513

Options to purchase 1,875,653; 2,126,186; and 696,387
shares of common stock in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, were excluded from the diluted earnings-
per-share calculations because they were anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could
differ from the estimates and assumptions used.

Stock-based Employee Compensation: At April 28,
2006, the company had various stock-based employee
compensation plans that are described more fully in
Note D. The company accounts for those plans under the
recognition and measurement principles of Accounting
Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations.
Accordingly, no compensation expense has been
recognized for stock options when the exercise price of
the options is equal to or greater than the fair market
value of the stock at the grant date. No stock options
were granted in 2006, 2005 and 2004 at less than fair
market value.
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Other Intangible Assets: Other intangible assets consist
of a business trade name and restaurant concept, and
represent allocations of the purchase price of the company’s
acquisition of Mimi’s based on a valuation
(see Notes G and H). The trade name intangible asset is
deemed to have an indefinite economic life and is not
amortized. It is tested for impairment at the beginning of
the fourth quarter each year or on a more frequent basis
if events or changes in circumstances indicate the asset
might be impaired. The restaurant concept intangible asset
is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated
economic life of 15 years.



The following table illustrates the effect on net income
and earnings per share if the company had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee
compensation:

2006 2005 2004

Net Income, as reported $54,774 $36,968 $72,035

Add: Stock-based
employee compensation
cost, net of related tax
effects, included in
reported net income 1,234 190 438

Deduct: Stock-based
employee compensation
cost, net of related tax
effects, determined under
the fair value method
for all awards (3,951) (5,568) (4,562)

Net Income, pro forma $52,057 $31,590 $67,911

Earnings Per Share
- Basic
As reported $1.53 $1.05 $2.07
Pro forma $1.46 $0.89 $1.95

Earnings Per Share
- Diluted
As reported $1.52 $1.04 $2.03
Pro forma $1.45 $0.89 $1.91

Note: The financial effects of applying SFAS No. 123 for the years reported may not be
representative of the effects on reported net income and earnings per share in future years.

Reflected in these pro forma amounts are weighted-
average fair values of options granted of $6.10, $7.96 and
$7.88 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The fair value
of each option granted was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes options-pricing model and the
following weighted-average assumptions:

2006 2005 2004

Dividend yield 2.00% 1.85% 1.85%
Expected volatility 33.39% 37.66% 40.29%
Risk-free interest rate 3.82% 3.66% 1.73%
Expected life (in years) 3.9 4.1 3.8

Leases: Rent expense for the company’s operating leases,
which generally have escalating rentals over the term of
the lease, is recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, as defined in SFAS No.13. The lease term begins
when the company has the right to control the use of the
leased property, which is typically before rent payments are
due under the terms of the lease. The difference between
the straight-line rent calculation and rent paid is recorded
as deferred rent in the consolidated balance sheets. Prior
to the fourth quarter of 2006, straight-line rent recorded
during the build-out period for new restaurants was
capitalized as a cost of constructing the related leasehold
improvements, and straight-line rent from the date the
premises were ready for their intended uses through the
restaurant opening date (generally a one-month period)
was expensed. At the beginning of the 2006 fourth quarter,
the company adopted Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Staff Position No. FAS 13-1, Accounting
for Rental Costs Incurred During a Construction Period.
This accounting standard prohibits the capitalization of
rental costs during construction build-out periods.
Therefore, the company now expenses all straight-line rent.
The 2006 impact of adopting FASB Staff Position FAS 13-1
was immaterial.

Contingent rents are generally amounts due as a
result of sales in excess of amounts stipulated in certain
restaurant leases and are included in rent expense as
they accrue.

In some instances the company has received contributions
from landlords to help fund the construction of new
restaurants. In accordance with SFAS No. 13 and FASB
Technical Bulletin No. 88-1, Issues Relating to Accounting
for Leases, the company has accounted for such landlord
contributions as lease incentive obligations that are
amortized as a reduction to lease expense over the applicable
lease term. The lease incentive obligations are included in
the consolidated balance sheets as deferred rent.

Reclassifications: Certain prior-year amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the 2006 classification.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In December 2002,
the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (R), Share-Based Payment,
which replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation, and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS No. 123 (R)
requires compensation costs related to share-based payment
transactions to be recognized in the financial statements.
With limited exceptions, the amount of compensation cost
will be measured based on the fair value on the grant date
of the equity or liability instruments issued. Compensation
cost will be recognized over the period that an employee
provides service for that award.

The company will adopt SFAS No. 123 (R) in the first
quarter of 2007 using the modified-prospective approach.
Under the modified-prospective method, compensation
cost is recognized in the financial statements beginning

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries • April 28, 2006
Dollars in thousands unless otherwise noted, except per share amounts

22



Note B • Long-Term Debt and Credit Arrangements

Long-term debt is comprised of the following:

April 28, 2006 April 29, 2005

Unsecured senior notes
issued July 28, 2004:
Series A, due

July 2007, 3.74% $  30,000 $  30,000
Series B, due

July 2010, 4.61% 40,000 40,000
Series C, due

July 2014, 5.12% 95,000 95,000
Series D, due

July 2016, 5.67% 25,000 25,000

Unsecured note
issued April 2001,
due May 2008, 7.35% 20,333 24,333

Total long-term debt 210,333 214,333
Less: current portion

of long-term debt 4,000 4,000

Long-term debt less
current portion $206,333 $210,333

On July 7, 2004, the company established a $183,000
short-term committed credit facility with a bank to finance
the acquisition of Mimi’s. This credit facility was paid
in full on July 28, 2004, with the proceeds of a private
placement of $190,000 in unsecured senior notes. The
senior notes mature over a period from July 2007 to
July 2016, with a weighted-average interest rate of 4.9%
paid quarterly.

In April 2001, the company issued a $40,000 unsecured
note to a bank, which bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.35%

and matures in May 2008. Required payments are $4,000
per year of principal plus interest, with a balloon payment
of $12,300 at maturity.

Both the senior notes and the bank note contain various
customary covenants and restrictions that, among other
things, require certain net worth and fixed charge coverage
ratios and place limitations on indebtedness. As of April
28, 2006, the company was in compliance with these
covenants and restrictions.

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2007 $  4,000
2008 34,000
2009 39,237
2010 26,904
2011 26,905
Thereafter 79,287
Total $210,333

The company also has arrangements with certain banks
from which it may borrow up to $100,000 on a short-term
basis. The arrangements are reviewed annually for renewal.
At April 28, 2006, there were no amounts outstanding
under these arrangements, and unused bank lines of
credit available were $100,000. During 2006 and 2005,
respectively, the maximum amounts outstanding under
these unsecured lines of credit were $63,000 and $47,620,
and the average amounts outstanding were $43,407
and $39,481 with weighted-average interest rates of 4.30%
and 2.50%. All interest paid on these arrangements is at
floating rates.

Interest costs of $1,057; $1,170; and $1,474 incurred
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were capitalized in
connection with the company’s construction activities.
Interest paid in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $12,909; $10,540;
and $2,988, respectively.
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with the effective date of adoption, based on the require-
ments of SFAS No. 123 (R) for all share-based payments
granted after that date, and based on the requirements of
SFAS No. 123 for all unvested awards granted prior to the
effective date of SFAS No. 123 (R). The estimated pre-tax
impact in 2007, based on unvested stock options outstanding
at April 28, 2006, is approximately $2.1 million.

In anticipation of the adoption of SFAS No. 123 (R), the
company has adjusted the mix of employee incentive-based
compensation by significantly reducing the number of
stock options that will be awarded in the future and
instead shifting to more restricted stock awards and other
cash-based compensation.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
(“FIN”) No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset

Retirement Obligations, effective for fiscal years ending
after Dec. 15, 2005. FIN No. 47 clarifies the term
“conditional” as used in SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations, and refers to a legal obligation to
perform an asset retirement activity even if the timing
and/or settlement is conditional on a future event that may
or may not be within the control of an entity. Accordingly,
the entity must record a liability for the conditional asset
retirement obligation if the fair value of the obligation can
be reasonably estimated. The company has entered into
certain leases that may require it to return the property to
the landlord in its original condition. The impact of
the adoption of FIN No. 47 in 2006, however, was not
material to the company’s financial condition or results
of operations.
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amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant
components of the company’s deferred tax liabilities and
assets as of April 28, 2006, and April 29, 2005, were as follows:

Note C • Income Taxes
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April 28, 2006 April 29, 2005

Deferred tax assets:
Loss on impaired assets $    7,546 $  7,546
Self-insurance 7,089 7,861
Vacation pay 1,842 1,755
Stock and deferred compensation plans 9,634 8,740
Accrued bonus 105 210
Tax credits 6,925 10,525
Deferred rent 4,228 6,233
Inventory and other 1,281 797
Total deferred tax assets 38,650 43,667

Deferred tax liabilities:
Accelerated depreciation/asset disposals 79,900 75,607
Intangible assets 22,073 22,392
Other 68 1,127
Total deferred tax liabilities 102,041 99,126
Net deferred tax liabilities $  63,391 $55,459

Significant components of the provisions for income taxes are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Current:
Federal $ 6,527 $14,779 $29,590
State 4,479 2,919 2,894
Total current 11,006 17,698 32,484

Deferred, primarily federal 7,932 3,006 7,471
Total tax provisions $18,938 $20,704 $39,955

The company’s provisions for income taxes differ from the amounts
computed by applying the federal statutory rate due to the following:

2006 2005 2004

Tax at statutory rate $25,799 $20,185 $39,196
State income tax (net) 2,911 1,897 1,881
Limited partnership tax credits (1,016) (1,147) (1,151)
Settlement of state income tax audits (net) (4,149) 0 0
Other (primarily FICA tip credits and work opportunity tax credits) (4,607) (231) 29

Provisions for income taxes $18,938 $20,704 $39,955

Taxes paid during 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $12,369; $6,932; and $25,901, respectively.

The company’s effective tax rate is based on income,
statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities available
to the company in the various jurisdictions in which the
company operates. Significant judgment is required in
determining the company’s effective tax rate and in
evaluating its tax positions. The company establishes
reserves when, despite its belief that its tax return positions

are fully supportable, it believes that certain positions
are likely to be challenged and that it may not succeed.
The company adjusts these reserves in light of changing
facts and circumstances, such as the progress of a tax audit.
The company’s effective tax rate includes the impact of
reserve provisions and changes to reserves that it considers
appropriate, as well as related interest.
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Note D • Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The company has equity compensation plans adopted in
1994 and 1998 and a non-qualified stock option plan
adopted in 1992, in conjunction with a supplemental
executive retirement plan. The 1992 plan provides that the
option price shall not be less than 50% of the fair market
value of the stock at the date of grant. The 1998 plan
provides that the option price for: 1) incentive stock
options may not be less than the fair market value of the
stock at the grant date and 2) non-qualified stock options
shall be determined by the compensation committee of the
board of directors. The 1994 plan prohibits option prices
less than the fair market value of the stock at the grant date.

The company’s supplemental executive retirement plan
(“SERP”) provides retirement benefits to certain key
management employees of the company and its

subsidiaries. The purpose of the 1992 non-qualified stock
option plan discussed earlier is to fund and settle benefit
contributions of the company that may arise under the
SERP. To the extent that benefits under the SERP are
satisfied by grants of non-qualified stock options, it
operates as an incentive plan that produces both risk
and reward to participants based on future growth in the
market value of the company’s common stock. The last
grant of stock options under the 1992 plan was in 2003;
the company does not intend to grant additional stock
options under this plan.

Options granted under the 1992 plan expire five years
after the earlier of the date the recipient attains age 65 or
dies. Options under the 1994 plan and the 1998 plan may
be granted for a period of up to 10 years and exercised
upon vesting for up to 10 years from the date of grant.

The following table summarizes option-related activity
for the last three years:
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A number of years may elapse before a particular matter,
for which the company has established a reserve, is audited
and finally resolved. The number of years with open tax
audits varies depending on the tax jurisdiction. While it is
often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of
resolution of any particular tax matter, the company
believes that its reserves reflect the probable outcome of
known tax contingencies. Unfavorable settlement of any
particular issue would require use of the company’s cash.
Favorable resolution would be recognized as a reduction to
the company’s effective tax rate in the period of resolution.

In April 2006, the company entered into a settlement
and compliance agreement with the State of Ohio related
to the determination of corporate franchise taxes for fiscal
years 1998 through 2006. As a result of this agreement, the

company recorded a reduction in the income tax provision
of $4,650 in the fourth quarter of 2006 to reverse reserves
in excess of the settlement amount.

On June 30, 2005, the State of Ohio enacted tax
legislation, which phases out the Ohio corporate franchise
(income) tax and phases in a new gross receipts tax called
the Commercial Activity Tax (CAT) over a five-year
period. While the corporate franchise (income) tax was
generally based on federal taxable income, the CAT is
based on current year sales and rentals in Ohio. The effect
of these tax changes did not and is not expected to have a
material impact on the company’s results of operations,
financial position or liquidity.

Shares Price Range

Outstanding, April 25, 2003 2,785,381 $ 6.56 to $31.16

Granted 766,893 27.84 to 27.84
Exercised (795,305) 6.78 to 31.16
Canceled or expired (43,963) 6.56 to 31.16

Outstanding, April 30, 2004 2,713,006 6.56 to 31.16

Granted 898,207 24.53 to 26.68
Exercised (164,676) 6.78 to 21.38
Canceled or expired (108,800) 6.78 to 31.16

Outstanding, April 29, 2005 3,337,737 6.56 to 31.16

Granted 243,939 23.22 to 23.22
Exercised (607,245) 6.56 to 27.84
Canceled or expired (584,880) 8.69 to 31.16

Outstanding, April 28, 2006 2,389,551 $ 6.56 to $31.16
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In addition to the shares subject to outstanding
options, 1,135,964 shares were available for grant under the
company’s equity compensation plans at April 28, 2006.

The following table summarizes information regarding stock
options outstanding at April 28, 2006:
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The company’s long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) , an
unfunded plan, provides for the award of shares of the
company’s common stock to mid-level managers as incentive
compensation to attain growth in the net income of the
company, as well as to help attract and retain management
personnel. Shares awarded are restricted until certain vesting
requirements are met. LTIP participants are entitled to cash
dividends and to vote their respective shares including

those not yet vested. Restrictions generally limit the sale,
pledge or transfer of the shares during a restricted period,
not to exceed 12 years. In 2005 and 2004, 14,976 and
71,926 shares, respectively, were awarded as part of the
LTIP. No shares were awarded in 2006. Compensation
expense attributable to the LTIP was $1,744 in 2006, $383
in 2005 and $681 in 2004.

Note E • Other Compensation Plans

The company has a defined contribution plan that
covers substantially all employees who have at least 1,000
hours of service. The company’s annual contribution to
the plan is at the discretion of the company’s board of
directors. The company’s expenses related to contributions
to the plan in 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $4,285; $4,300;
and $3,974, respectively.

In 1999, the company implemented the Bob Evans
Executive Deferral Plan (“BEEDP”). The BEEDP is a non-
qualified plan that provides certain executives the

opportunity to defer a portion of their current incomes
to future years.

The company’s SERP previously provided executives
with an option to accept all or a portion of individual
awards in the form of non-qualified deferred compensation
rather than non-qualified stock options. Since 2003, all
awards have been in the form of non-qualified deferred
compensation. The company’s expense related to
contributions to the SERP was $(485); $388; and $379 in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The negative amount in
2006 was due to significant forfeitures.

Note F • Commitments and Contingencies

The company leases certain restaurant facilities under
operating leases having initial terms that primarily expire
approximately 20 years from inception. The leases typically
contain renewal clauses of five to 30 years exercisable at the
option of the company. Certain of these leases require the
payment of contingent rentals based on a percentage of
gross revenues, as defined by the terms of the applicable
lease agreement. Most of the leases also contain either
fixed or inflation-adjusted escalation clauses. Future
minimum rental payments on operating leases are
as follows:

2007 $ 19,297
2008 19,412
2009 19,308
2010 18,982
2011 18,647
Thereafter 214,488 
Total $310,134

At April 28, 2006, the company had contractual
commitments of approximately $37,871 for restaurant
construction, plant equipment additions and purchases
of land and inventory.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Number Weighted-Avg. Weighted-Avg. Number Weighted-Avg.
Outstanding Remaining Exercise Exercisable Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices at 4/28/06 Contractual Life Price at 4/28/06 Price

$ 6.56 to $16.99 204,112 8.6 $12.36 164,524 $12.95
17.00 to 18.99 180,387 5.0 17.46 180,387 17.46
19.00 to 21.99 197,665 2.9 19.85 197,665 19.85
22.00 to 26.99 813,692 8.4 25.76 238,080 26.58
27.00 to 30.99 494,401 7.1 27.84 345,051 27.84
31.00 to 31.16 499,294 5.4 31.16 483,074 31.16

$ 6.56 to $31.16 2,389,551 6.8 $25.06 1,608,781 $24.98
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The company is self-insured for most casualty losses
and employee health-care claims up to certain stop-loss
limits. The company has accounted for its liabilities for
casualty losses, including both reported claims and
incurred but not reported claims, based on information
provided by independent actuaries. The company has
accounted for its employee health-care claims liability
through a review of incurred and paid claims history.

Management believes that it has recorded reserves for
casualty losses and employee health-care claims at a level
that has substantially mitigated the potential negative
impact of adverse developments and/or volatility.
Management believes that its calculation of casualty losses
and employee health-care claims liabilities would not
change materially under different conditions and/or
different methods. However, due to the inherent volatility
of actuarially determined casualty losses and employee

health-care claims, it is reasonably possible that the
company could experience changes in estimated losses,
which could be material to both quarterly and annual
net income.

The company is from time to time involved in a number
of claims and litigation considered normal in the course of
business. Various lawsuits and assessments, among them
employment discrimination, product liability, workers’
compensation claims and tax assessments, are in litigation
or administrative hearings. While it is not feasible to
predict the outcome, in the opinion of the company,
these actions should not ultimately have a material adverse
effect on the financial position or results of operations
of the company. In the fourth quarter of 2006, the
company recorded an $885 charge related to the
settlement of a class action lawsuit concerning the timing
of employee break periods in California at Mimi’s.
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Note G • Acquisition

On July 7, 2004, the company acquired all of the stock
of Mimi’s (based in Tustin, Calif.) for approximately
$106,000 in cash, plus the assumption of approximately
$79,000 in outstanding indebtedness, which was paid in
full at the closing of the acquisition.

In October 2005, the company paid a purchase
price adjustment that increased the total cost of the
acquisition, and therefore goodwill, by $365.

The acquisition was financed through a committed
credit facility of approximately $183,000; the proceeds of
which were used to purchase all of the outstanding stock
of Mimi’s, repay existing indebtedness of Mimi’s and
pay certain transaction expenses. The credit facility was
refinanced on July 28, 2004, through a private placement
of $190,000 in unsecured senior notes (see Note B).

On July 7, 2004, Mimi’s operated 81 company-owned
Mimi’s Café restaurants in 10 states, with most locations
in California and other western states. The restaurants are
open for breakfast, lunch and dinner, and offer a wide
variety of freshly prepared food in an atmosphere
reminiscent of a New Orleans café or European bistro.
The transaction was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting as required by SFAS No. 141,
Business Combinations, and accordingly, the results
of operations of Mimi’s have been included in the
company’s consolidated financial statements from the
date of acquisition.

The primary reason for the acquisition was to add a
complementary growth vehicle in the casual segment

of the restaurant industry. The company attributes the
goodwill associated with the transaction to the long-term
historical financial performance and the anticipated
future performance of Mimi’s.

The purchase price allocation to the acquired net assets
was as follows:

Current assets $ 7,430
Property and equipment, net 117,860
Other assets 356
Goodwill 56,162
Intangible asset – trade name 45,800
Intangible asset – restaurant concept 12,300
Current liabilities (20,641)
Deferred compensation (1,607)
Net deferred tax liability (21,882)
Deferred rent (10,554)

Cash paid 185,224
Less: cash acquired (1,691)
Net cash paid for acquisition $183,533

The intangible asset related to the trade name is deemed
to have an indefinite economic life and is not subject to
amortization. The intangible asset related to the restaurant
concept is subject to amortization and is amortized on a
straight-line basis over its estimated economic useful life
of 15 years. None of the goodwill balance is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

Deferred rent represents fair value adjustments related
to acquired leases.
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The following table illustrates the pro forma impact on
certain financial results if the acquisition had occurred at
the beginning of 2004. The amounts have been updated
to reflect the purchase price allocation shown above. The
pro-forma financial information does not purport to be
indicative of the operating results that would have been
achieved had the acquisition been consummated at
the beginning of 2004 and should not be construed as
representative of future operating results.

2005 2004

Net sales $ 1,510,864 $ 1,454,001
Net income $ 36,921 $ 69,324

Earnings per share:
Basic $1.05 $1.99
Diluted $1.04 $1.95

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries • April 28, 2006
Dollars in thousands unless otherwise noted, except per share amounts

Note H • Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At the beginning of the fourth quarter of 2006 and 2005,
the company completed its annual impairment test
required under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets. The company determined
that no impairment existed, and as a result, no impairment
losses were recorded in 2006 or 2005.

The changes in goodwill are summarized below:

Restaurant Food Products
Segment Segment Total

April 30, 2004,
carrying amount $ 0 $1,567 $ 1,567

Goodwill acquired
(see Note G) 55,797 0 55,797

April 29, 2005,
carrying amount $55,797 $1,567 $57,364

Purchase price
adjustment
(see Note G) 365 0 365

April 28, 2006,
carrying amount $56,162 $1,567 $57,729

Intangible assets consisted of the following (see Note G):

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount

April 28, 2006

Amortized
intangible assets:
Restaurant concept
(15-year life) $12,300 $ 1,503 $10,797

Unamortized
intangible assets:
Business trade name 45,800

Total net carrying amount $56,597

April 29, 2005

Amortized
intangible assets:
Restaurant concept
(15-year life) $12,300 $ 683 $11,617

Unamortized
intangible assets:
Business trade name 45,800

Total net carrying amount $57,417

The amortization expense related to these intangible
assets was $820 in 2006 and $683 in 2005; the company
did not have these intangible assets prior to 2005.
Amortization expense related to intangible assets for the
next five years is expected to be $820 each year.
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Note I • Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Net sales $395,640 $320,615 $392,363 $376,020 $399,478 $380,976 $397,338 $382,584
Gross profit 14,001 23,084 22,588 19,184 23,612 13,119 25,156 11,519
Net income 7,160 14,236 13,156 10,569 13,974 6,636 20,484 5,527
Earnings per share:

Basic $0.20 $0.40 $0.37 $0.30 $0.39 $0.19 $0.57 $0.16
Diluted 0.20 0.40 0.37 0.30 0.39 0.19 0.56 0.16

Common stock bid prices:
High $25.65 $31.84 $26.12 $28.54 $26.75 $26.45 $30.99 $24.59
Low 20.31 24.45 21.50 22.49 21.51 23.60 26.04 19.91

Cash dividends declared $0.12 $0.12 $0.12 $0.12 $0.12 $0.12 $0.12 $0.12

• Gross profit represents operating income.
• Each fiscal quarter is comprised of a 13-week period.
• Total quarterly earnings per share may not equal the annual amount because earnings per share are calculated

independently for each quarter.
•

• The number of stockholders of the company’s common stock at June 15, 2006, was 32,205.

The quarterly financial data includes special items that increased (decreased) gross profit and net income as follows:

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Gross Profit
Gains on asset sales(1) $0 $0 $3,735 $0 $1,772 $0 $ 2,603 $0
Charge for amortization

of investments(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (3,487) 0
Charge for lawsuit

settlement(3) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (885) 0
Charge for closing

Owens Restaurants(4) 0 0 0 0 (628) 0 0 0
Impact on gross profit $0 $0 $3,735 $0 $1,144 $0 $(1,769) $0

Net Income
After-tax impact of items

impacting gross profit $0 $0 $2,517 $0 $   768 $0 $(1,255) $0
Tax benefit of

settlement with Ohio(5) 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,650 0
Impact on net income $0 $0 $2,517 $0 $   768 $0 $ 3,395 $0

(1) Gains on the sale of various properties (see Note A).
(2) Charge created by a change in the estimated residual value of the company's investments in income

tax credit limited partnerships (see Note A).
(3) Charge related to the settlement of a class action lawsuit (see Note F).
(4) Charge resulted from the January 2006 closing of the company's remaining Owens Restaurants.
(5) The company recorded a tax benefit after it entered into a settlement and compliance agreement

with the State of Ohio (see Note C).
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Note J • Industry Segments

The company’s operations include restaurant operations
and the processing and sale of food products. The revenues
from these segments include both sales to unaffiliated
customers and intersegment sales, which are accounted
for on a basis consistent with sales to unaffiliated
customers. Intersegment sales and other intersegment
transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements.

Operating income represents earnings before interest
and income taxes. Identifiable assets by segment are
those assets that are used in the company’s operations
in each segment. General corporate assets consist of cash
equivalents, long-term investments and income taxes.

Information on the company’s industry segments is
summarized as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Sales
Restaurant operations $ 1,335,741 $ 1,230,301 $ 984,896
Food products 286,460 269,903 248,373

1,622,201 1,500,204 1,233,269
Intersegment sales of food products (37,382) (40,009) (35,272)

Total $ 1,584,819 $ 1,460,195 $ 1,197,997

Operating Income
Restaurant operations $ 70,497  $  57,710 $  95,878
Food products 14,860    9,196 17,423

Total $ 85,357  $  66,906 $ 113,301

Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Restaurant operations $ 64,839  $  58,790 $ 42,516
Food products 11,223 8,045 7,590

Total $ 76,062  $  66,835 $ 50,106

Capital Expenditures
Restaurant operations $ 104,485 $ 132,683 $ 121,366
Food products 8,375    6,904 19,671

Total $ 112,860 $ 139,587 $ 141,037

Identifiable Assets
Restaurant operations $ 1,068,331 $ 1,041,386 $ 749,599
Food products 83,699  79,608 76,933

1,152,030 1,120,994 826,532
General corporate assets 57,153  62,992 41,701

Total $ 1,209,183 $ 1,183,986 $ 868,233



To the Stockholders of Bob Evans Farms, Inc.:

Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. Internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Accordingly,
even an effective system of internal control over financial
reporting will provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation.

Under our supervision, management assessed our
internal control over financial reporting as of April 28,
2006, the end of our fiscal year. Management based its
assessment on criteria established in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Management’s assessment included evaluation of such
elements as the design and operating effectiveness of key
financial reporting controls, process documentation,
accounting policies and our overall control environment.
This assessment is supported by testing and monitoring
performed by our internal audit function.

Based on our assessment, management has concluded
that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of the end of the fiscal year to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external reporting purposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

We reviewed the results of management’s assessment
with the audit committee of our board of directors.
Additionally, our independent registered public accounting
firm, Ernst & Young LLP, audited management’s
assessment and independently assessed the effectiveness
of the company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Ernst & Young has issued an attestation report concurring
with management’s assessment, which is included in this
annual report.

Steven A. Davis
Chief Executive Officer

Donald J. Radkoski
Chief Financial Officer

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
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To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Bob Evans
Farms, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in
the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Bob Evans Farms,
Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of April 28, 2006, based on criteria established
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“the COSO criteria”). Bob Evans Farms,
Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion
on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Bob
Evans Farms, Inc. maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of April 28, 2006, is fairly stated,
in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also,
in our opinion, Bob Evans Farms, Inc. maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of April 28, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the 2006 consolidated financial statements
of Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and our report dated July 10,
2006, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Columbus, Ohio
July 10, 2006

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm



To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Bob Evans
Farms, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and subsidiaries as of April
28, 2006, and April 29, 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended April 28,
2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Bob Evans Farms, Inc.
and subsidiaries at April 28, 2006, and April 29, 2005,
and the consolidated results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
April 28, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Bob Evans Farms,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of April
28, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control
– Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
and our report dated July 10, 2006, expressed an
unqualified opinion.

Columbus, Ohio
July 10, 2006

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Selected Financial Information
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Results of Operations

The company owns and operates 689 full-service
restaurants, including 587 Bob Evans Restaurants in
19 states and 102 Mimi’s Café restaurants in 17 states.
Bob Evans Restaurants are primarily located in the
Midwest, mid-Atlantic and Southeast regions of the
United States. Mimi’s Café restaurants are primarily
located in California and other western states. Revenue
in the restaurant segment is recognized at the point of sale.

The company also produces and distributes fresh and
fully cooked pork products and a variety of complementary
homestyle convenience food items under the Bob Evans
and Owens brand names. These food products are
distributed primarily to grocery stores in the East North
Central, mid-Atlantic, Southern and Southwestern United
States. Revenue in the food products segment is generally
recognized when products are delivered to the retailer.

References herein to 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004 refer
to fiscal years. Fiscal 2004 was a 53-week year, whereas
all other years presented are 52-week years. The company
acquired SWH Corporation (d/b/a Mimi’s Café)
(“Mimi’s”) on July 7, 2004 (see Note G of the consolidated
financial statements). The results of operations of Mimi’s
have only been included in the company’s consolidated
financial statements from the date of acquisition, which
impacts comparisons to prior years.

Special Items

Results of operations for 2006 included the impact of
several special items that, in total, increased reported net
income by $6.7 million, or approximately $0.18 per share
(both basic and diluted). The special items resulted in a
net increase in restaurant segment operating income of
$6.6 million ($4.5 million after tax), a decrease in food

products segment operating income of $3.5 million ($2.5
million after tax) and an additional income tax benefit of
$4.7 million.

The restaurant segment special items included $8.1
million in gains (pre-tax) on the sale of various properties
and a $0.9 million charge (pre-tax) related to a lawsuit
settlement. Both of these items are classified in selling,
general and administrative expenses. Restaurant segment
results also reflected a $0.6 million charge (pre-tax) related
to the January 2006 closing of the company’s remaining
Owens Restaurants. This charge primarily affected
operating wage and fringe benefit expenses.

The food products segment special item of $3.5 million
(pre-tax) resulted from a change in the estimated
residual value of the company’s investments in income
tax credit limited partnerships and was classified in
amortization expense.

The additional income tax benefit of $4.7 million
recorded in 2006 was due to an April 2006 settlement and
compliance agreement with the State of Ohio related to the
determination of corporate franchise taxes for fiscal years
1998 through 2006. The amount of the benefit was the
reversal of reserves in excess of the settlement amount.

General Overview

The following table reflects data for the company’s
fiscal year ended April 28, 2006, compared to the preceding
two fiscal years. The consolidated information is derived
from the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. Also included is data for the company’s two
industry segments – restaurant operations and food
products. The ratios presented reflect the underlying
dollar values expressed as a percentage of the applicable
net sales amount.

(dollars in thousands) Consolidated Results Restaurant Segment Food Products Segment

2006* 2005 2004 2006* 2005 2004 2006* 2005 2004

Net sales $1,584,819 $1,460,195 $1,197,997 $1,335,741 $1,230,301 $984,896 $249,078 $229,894 $213,101

Operating income $85,357 $66,906 $113,301 $70,497 $57,710 $95,878 $14,860 $9,196 $17,423

Cost of sales 29.6% 30.3% 28.4% 25.6% 25.9% 24.4% 51.4% 53.9% 47.3%

Operating wages 36.3% 36.4% 34.9% 40.8% 40.9% 39.6% 11.8% 12.2% 13.4%

Other operating 16.3% 16.2% 14.6% 18.3% 18.2% 16.6% 5.4% 5.5% 5.3%

S,G&A 7.6% 7.9% 8.4% 5.2% 5.5% 5.4% 20.9% 20.9% 22.2%

Depreciation & amortization 4.8% 4.6% 4.2% 4.8% 4.8% 4.3% 4.5% 3.5% 3.6%

Operating income 5.4% 4.6% 9.5% 5.3% 4.7% 9.7% 6.0% 4.0% 8.2%

*Consolidated and restaurant results include the following special items discussed above: $8,110 net pre-tax gains on asset disposals and an $885 pre-tax
charge for a lawsuit settlement, both in S,G&A; and a $628 pre-tax charge, primarily to operating wages, related to the closing of the remaining Owens
Restaurants. Consolidated and food products results include a $3,487 pre-tax charge included in amortization related to investments in income tax
credit limited partnerships. The net pre-tax gain from the special items in 2006 was $3,110. Excluding the special items in 2006, results would have been
as follows:
• Cost of sales: $469,580 consolidated; 29.6% of consolidated sales and 25.6% of restaurant sales
• Operating wages: $573,857 consolidated; 36.2% of consolidated sales and 40.8% of restaurant sales
• S,G&A: $128,306 consolidated; 8.1% of consolidated sales and 5.7% of restaurant sales
• Depr. & amort.: $72,575 consolidated; 4.6% of consolidated sales and 3.1% of food products sales
• Operating income: $82,247 consolidated; 5.2% of consolidated sales, 4.8% of restaurant sales and 7.4% of food products sales.
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Restaurant Segment Overview

The ongoing economic and industry-wide factors relevant
to the restaurant segment include: competition, same-store
sales (defined in the sales section below), labor and
fringe benefit expenses, commodity prices, energy prices,
restaurant openings and closings, governmental initiatives,
food safety and other risks such as the economy, weather
and consumer acceptance. In 2006, the factor that had the
greatest negative impact on restaurant segment profitability
was weakness in same-store sales (primarily at Bob Evans
Restaurants) throughout the year. The factors that had the
greatest positive impact on restaurant segment profitability
were improved food and labor costs in the last half of
the year.

Same-store sales in 2006 decreased 1.6% at Bob Evans
Restaurants and increased 1.6% at Mimi’s Cafés compared
to 2005. Although Bob Evans Restaurants experienced a
decline in same-store sales for the year, the results in the
last half of the year were stronger than the first half. The
company attributed the improvement to a renewed focus
on the breakfast day part and the introduction of a new
streamlined menu in 2006.

Management’s focus on controlling food and labor
costs had a significant positive impact on operating results
in the latter half of 2006. Additionally, commodity costs
were more favorable after the first quarter of 2006 when
compared to the corresponding period last year. Labor
costs improved through effective management of labor
hours and modifying hours of operation to better
match customer traffic patterns. These factors are
discussed further in the detailed sections that follow.
However, the end result is that restaurant operating
income increased $12.8 million, or 22.2%, in 2006
compared to a year ago.

Furthermore, the segment’s operating income margin
was 5.3% in 2006 compared to 4.7% in 2005. Excluding
the $6.6 million net pre-tax gain from the special items
outlined in the earnings table above, the segment’s
operating income increased $6.2 million, or 10.7%, in
2006 compared to a year ago, and the segment’s operating
income margin was 4.8%.

During 2006, the company closed 24 Bob Evans
and Owens Restaurants. These restaurants contributed
approximately $28 million in annualized sales and
$1 million in annualized operating losses.

Food Products Segment Overview

The ongoing economic and industry-wide factors
relevant to the food products segment include: hog costs,
governmental initiatives, food safety and other risks such
as the economy, weather and consumer acceptance. In

2006, the two factors that had the greatest impact on food
products segment profitability were strong sales growth
and lower hog costs.

Food products segment net sales increased 8.3% in 2006
compared to 2005. The higher net sales were driven by a
9.9% increase in pounds sold of comparable products
(principally sausage and refrigerated potatoes). The sales
increase in terms of dollars was less than the increase in
terms of pounds due to lower net prices on items sold.

Hog costs represent the majority of food products
segment cost of sales, and the volatile nature of hog costs
greatly impacts the profitability of the segment. Compared
to a year ago, hog costs decreased 14.5% in 2006. This
decrease in hog costs led to a decrease in food products
segment cost of sales to 51.4% of sales in 2006 from
53.9% a year ago.

The increase in net sales, combined with lower hog
costs and better leveraging of operating expenses, resulted
in an increase in operating income of $5.7 million, or
61.6%, in 2006 compared to a year ago. Additionally, the
food products operating income margin increased to 6.0%
of sales in 2006 versus 4.0% in 2005. Excluding the $3.5
million pre-tax charge from special items outlined in the
earnings table above, the segment’s operating income
increased $9.2 million, nearly double a year ago, and the
segment’s operating margin was 7.4%.

Sales

Consolidated net sales increased $124.6 million, or
8.5%, in 2006 compared to 2005. The 2006 increase was
the net result of a $105.4 million increase in restaurant
segment sales and a $19.2 million increase in food
products segment sales. The restaurant segment increase
was due, in part, to the fact that 2005 results did not
include Mimi’s sales until after the company acquired
Mimi’s near the end of the first quarter of 2005. Based on
the pro-forma data (provided in Note G of the financial
statements), the sales increase in 2006 would have been
4.9% compared to a year ago if Mimi’s sales were included
for all of 2005.

Restaurant segment sales accounted for 84.3% of total
sales in both 2006 and 2005 and 82.2% of total sales in
2004. The $105.4 million in additional restaurant sales in
2006 represented an 8.6% increase over 2005 sales, which
were 24.9% higher than 2004 sales. Excluding the impact
of the extra week in 2004, restaurant sales increased
27.4% in 2005 over 2004, mostly as a result of the Mimi’s
acquisition, which provided $238.0 million in sales in
2005. The increase in restaurant sales in 2006 was largely
the result of the inclusion of Mimi’s results for a full year,
as well as more restaurants in operation, partially offset by
a 1.6% decrease in same-store sales at Bob Evans
Restaurants. Using pro-forma data for 2005 to normalize
the impact of the Mimi’s acquisition, restaurant sales in
2006 increased 4.3% compared to 2005.



36

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Selected Financial Information
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Mimi’s had a same-store sales increase of 1.6% in 2006,
which included an average menu price increase of 2.2%.
Same-store sales at Bob Evans Restaurants decreased 1.6%
and 3.6% in 2006 and 2005, respectively, and increased
1.2% in 2004 (excluding the impact of the extra week in
2004). These same-store sales comparisons for Bob Evans
Restaurants included average menu price increases of
1.5% in both 2006 and 2005 and 2.3% in 2004. Although
same-store sales comparisons were negative at Bob Evans
Restaurants for nearly all of 2006, the results in the last
two quarters of the year significantly improved over the
previous six quarters. Same-store sales computations for
a given year are based on net sales of stores that are open
for at least two years prior to the start of that year. Sales
of stores to be rebuilt are excluded for all periods in the
computation when construction commences on the
replacement building. Sales of closed stores are excluded
for all periods in the computation.

Carryout and retail sales also contributed to the Bob
Evans Restaurant sales increase in 2006. Carryout sales
represented 6.8% of Bob Evans Restaurant sales in 2006
compared to 6.4% and 6.3% in 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Retail merchandise sales comprised 1.9% of Bob Evans
Restaurant sales in both 2006 and 2005 compared to 1.7%
in 2004. Sales at Mimi’s benefited from beer and wine
sales, which represented 3.3% of its sales in both 2006
and 2005, and also from carryout sales, which represented
3.8% of its sales in 2006 compared to 3.4% in 2005.

Additional restaurant sales growth in 2006 was provided
by an increase in the number of operating locations: 689
restaurants in operation at the end of 2006 compared to
683 in 2005. The 2006 Bob Evans Restaurant openings
included further expansion into existing markets particu-
larly in Ohio, Florida and Missouri. During 2006, 24
underperforming Bob Evans Restaurants, including the
remaining Owens Restaurants, were closed. Mimi’s 2006
openings included three restaurants in both California and
Florida, as well as the first restaurants in Arkansas,
Georgia, Tennessee and South Carolina. The chart below
summarizes the restaurant openings and closings during
the last two years for Bob Evans Restaurants and Mimi’s:

Bob Evans Restaurants:

Beginning Opened Closed Ending

Fiscal Year 2006
First Quarter 591 6 4 593
Second Quarter 593 6 11 588
Third Quarter 588 3 9 582
Fourth Quarter 582 5 0 587

Fiscal Year 2005
First Quarter 558 11 2 567
Second Quarter 567 12 1 578
Third Quarter 578 10 1 587
Fourth Quarter 587 4 0 591

Mimi’s Cafés:

Beginning Opened Closed Ending

Fiscal Year 2006
First Quarter 92 1 0 93
Second Quarter 93 2 0 95
Third Quarter 95 1 0 96
Fourth Quarter 96 6 0 102

Fiscal Year 2005
First Quarter 81 0 0 81
Second Quarter 81 3 0 84
Third Quarter 84 4 0 88
Fourth Quarter 88 4 0 92

Consolidated Restaurants:

Beginning Opened Closed Ending

Fiscal Year 2006
First Quarter 683 7 4 686
Second Quarter 686 8 11 683
Third Quarter 683 4 9 678
Fourth Quarter 678 11 0 689

Fiscal Year 2005
First Quarter 639 11 2 648
Second Quarter 648 15 1 662
Third Quarter 662 14 1 675
Fourth Quarter 675 8 0 683
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The company has updated the appearance of many of
its Bob Evans Restaurants, of which 14 were rebuilt and
34 remodeled in the past year. Management believes that
the enhanced appearance of the restaurants, along with
a “back to basics” approach will strengthen the Bob Evans
concept. For 2007, the company plans to decrease the
growth rate of Bob Evans Restaurants to approximately
10 new locations and rebuild 4 existing restaurants. In
addition, the company expects to increase the number of
Mimi’s openings to approximately 14 in 2007.

Various promotional programs were employed
throughout the last few years, including those involving
gift cards, children’s programs and seasonal menu
offerings. The 2006 strategy at Bob Evans Restaurants
primarily focused on a new streamlined menu that was
introduced in November 2005. The company began a
“back to basics” approach with its Bob Evans Restaurants
by focusing on customer service and highlighting
higher-margin breakfast offerings, which have been
the company’s traditional strength.

Although Mimi’s same-store sales slowed somewhat
in the latter part of 2006, management is pleased with the
overall performance and progress of Mimi’s. Management
is also pleased with the strong reception that Mimi’s has
received in new markets.

Food products segment sales accounted for 15.7%
of total sales in both 2006 and 2005 and 17.8% of total
sales in 2004. Food products segment sales increased
$19.2 million, or 8.3%, in 2006 versus 2005. The 2006
sales increase was reflective of a 9.9% increase in the
volume of comparable products sold (calculated using
the same products in both periods and excluding newer
products). The increase in sales was driven mostly by the
company’s complementary homestyle convenience items,
primarily refrigerated potatoes and macaroni & cheese.
The increase in food products sales was partially offset by
a $7.5 million increase in promotional spending, which
is netted against sales.

Food products segment sales increased $16.8 million,
or 7.9%, in 2005 versus 2004. Excluding the impact of the
extra week in 2004, food products segment sales increased
$20.6 million, or 9.9%, in 2005 versus 2004. The 2005
sales increase was reflective of a 5.4% increase in the
volume of sausage products sold (calculated using the
same products in both periods and excluding both newer
products and the extra week in 2004) and an approximate
5% price increase in manufactured products. The increase
in volume was reflective of the strength in the company’s
core sausage products and complementary homestyle
convenience items (primarily refrigerated potatoes
and macaroni & cheese). A $4.9 million decrease in
promotional spending, which is netted against sales,
also contributed to the increase in sales.

Cost of Sales

Consolidated cost of sales (cost of materials) was
29.6%, 30.3% and 28.4% of sales in 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

In the restaurant segment, cost of sales (predominantly
food costs) was 25.6%, 25.9% and 24.4% of sales in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Restaurant cost of sales
changed significantly during the year in both 2005 and
2006. During 2005, restaurant cost of sales rose from
24.4% of sales in the first quarter to 26.8% of sales in
the fourth quarter. During 2006, the reverse occurred:
restaurant cost of sales declined steadily from a high of
26.6% of sales in the first quarter to 24.8% of sales in
the fourth quarter.

The increases in restaurant cost of sales in 2005
were due mostly to the inclusion of Mimi’s and, to a
lesser extent, a higher commodity price environment
in the restaurant industry and the impact of initiatives
to enhance customers’ value perceptions at Bob Evans
Restaurants. Mimi’s cost of sales is traditionally higher
than Bob Evans Restaurants’ cost of sales primarily as a
result of a greater portion of sales that are derived from
lunch and dinner items, which typically carry higher food
costs, as well as a different positioning strategy (similar to
casual theme restaurants) than Bob Evans Restaurants.

The initiatives at Bob Evans Restaurants that negatively
impacted the cost of sales ratio in 2005 included increased
portion sizes as well as price reductions on several popular
menu items. The improvement in restaurant cost of sales
throughout 2006 was due to decreasing reliance on the
value initiatives at Bob Evans Restaurants implemented in
2005, a gradually improving commodity price environment
and a renewed focus on lower-cost breakfast items at
Bob Evans Restaurants.

Food products segment cost of sales was 51.4%, 53.9%
and 47.3% of sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
These results were reflective of changing hog costs, which
averaged $43.26, $50.60 and $37.99 per hundredweight
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The 2006 average
represented a 14.5% decrease compared to 2005, and the
2005 average represented a 33.2% increase compared to
2004. Additionally, the cost of sales ratio in the food
products segment has generally trended higher in the last
few years, reflecting increasing sales of purchased products
(e.g. mashed potatoes, frozen entrees, etc.), which tend
to have a higher cost of sales compared to the products
produced internally.
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Operating Wage and Fringe Benefit Expenses

Consolidated operating wage and fringe benefit expenses
(“operating wages”) were 36.3%, 36.4% and 34.9% of sales
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The operating wage
ratio decreased slightly in both the restaurant segment and
the food products segment in 2006.

In the restaurant segment, operating wages were
40.8%, 40.9% and 39.6% of sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. While the operating wage ratio for 2006 was
comparable to 2005, the ratio of 40.8% for the year was
only possible because of much improved labor costs in
the latter part of 2006. Initiatives to enhance customer
satisfaction levels at Bob Evans Restaurants had the effect
of increasing labor costs early in the year. During the
latter part of the year, however, labor costs were improved
through effective management of labor hours and
modifying hours of operation to better match customer
traffic patterns. The higher wages in 2005 compared to
2004 were the result of an increased focus on customer
service initiatives, higher health insurance costs and
the fact that wages were not as well leveraged (due to
lower-than-expected same-store sales).

In the food products segment, operating wages
were 11.8%, 12.2% and 13.4% of sales in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The 2006 decrease was due to
better leveraging of costs as a result of increased sales
volume discussed in the “Sales” section above. The 2005
decrease was also due to better leveraging of costs as
a result of increased sales volume, as well as a price
increase in manufactured products.

Other Operating Expenses

Nearly 95% of other operating expenses (“operating
expenses”) occurred in the restaurant segment in 2006;
the most significant components of which were utilities,
advertising, restaurant supplies, repair and maintenance,
rent, taxes (other than federal and state income taxes)
and credit card processing fees. Consolidated operating
expenses were 16.3%, 16.2% and 14.6% of sales in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Restaurant segment operating
expenses were 18.3%, 18.2% and 16.6% of sales in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The significant fluctuations

within restaurant segment operating expenses for 2006
compared to 2005 included increased utilities expense
due mostly to higher natural gas prices, offset by decreased
advertising expenses at Bob Evans Restaurants. The
increase in 2005 compared to 2004 was due to a negative
leveraging of operating expenses, as the result of
lower-than-expected same-store sales at Bob Evans
Restaurants, and increased rent expense associated
with Mimi’s, which leases nearly all of its locations.

Food products segment operating expenses as a percent
of sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004 were 5.4%, 5.5% and 5.3%,
respectively. The 2006 results were generally comparable
to 2005, whereas the increase in 2005 versus 2004 was due
to the inclusion of a new production plant in Sulphur
Springs, Texas.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The most significant components of selling, general
and administrative (“S,G&A”) expenses were wages and
fringe benefits, food products advertising expense, food
products transportation costs and gains on real estate sales.
Consolidated S,G&A expenses represented 7.6%, 7.9%
and 8.4% of sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The decrease in 2006 was mostly due to gains on the sale
of real estate of $8.1 million reflected as a reduction of
S,G&A expense in the restaurant segment. Excluding the
gains on the sale of real estate and a $0.9 million charge for
a lawsuit settlement, consolidated S,G&A expenses were
8.1% of sales in 2006. Transportation costs in the food
products segment increased as a percentage of sales due to
significantly higher fuel costs. The decrease in the S,G&A
ratio in 2005 as compared to 2004 was due to lower bonus
accruals as well as the inclusion of Mimi’s, which had an
overall lower S,G&A ratio than Bob Evans Restaurants.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense (“D&A”) was
4.8%, 4.6% and 4.2% of consolidated sales in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively, and 4.5%, 3.5% and 3.6% of food
products sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
significant increase in D&A in 2006 was the result of an
amortization charge of $3.5 million due to a change in
the estimated residual value of the company’s investments
in income tax credit limited partnerships. Excluding this
charge, D&A in 2006 would have been 4.6% of consolidated
sales and 3.1% of food products sales. The increase in
consolidated D&A in 2005 over 2004 was due to the
Mimi’s acquisition.
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Taxes

The effective federal and state income tax rates
were 25.7%, 35.9% and 35.7% in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. In 2005, the company received an assessment
from the State of Ohio related to corporate franchise
tax for fiscal years 1998 through 2003. In April 2006,
the company entered into a settlement and compliance
agreement with the state that covered fiscal years 1998
through 2006. As a result of this agreement, the company
recorded a reduction in the income tax provision of $4.7
million, which was attributable to the reversal of reserves
in excess of the settlement amount. Excluding the effect
of the settlement, the 2006 effective tax rate was 32.0%.

On June 30, 2005, the State of Ohio enacted tax
legislation, which phases out the Ohio corporate franchise
(income) tax and phases in a new gross receipts tax called
the Commercial Activity Tax (“CAT”) over a five-year
period. While the corporate franchise (income) tax was
generally based on federal taxable income, the CAT is
based on current year sales and rentals in Ohio. The effect
of these tax changes did not and is not expected to have a
material impact on the company’s results of operations,
financial position or liquidity.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash generated from both the restaurant and food
products segments was used as the main source of funds
for working capital and capital expenditure requirements
in 2006. Cash and equivalents totaled $16.7 million at
April 28, 2006. Cash dividends paid represented 31.2%
of net income in 2006 and 45.8% of net income in 2005.

Bank lines of credit were used for liquidity needs
and capital expansion during 2006 and 2005. At
April 28, 2006, no amounts were outstanding under
such arrangements, and unused bank lines of credit
available were $100 million. These unsecured revolving
lines of credit are renewed annually.

In 2001, the company issued a $40 million unsecured
note to a bank to replace an equivalent amount
outstanding on its unsecured line of credit. The note
bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.35% and matures in
May 2008. Required payments are $4.0 million per year
of principal plus interest, with a balloon payment of
$12.3 million at maturity. At April 28, 2006, $20.3 million
was outstanding on this note.

On July 7, 2004, the company established a $183 million
short-term committed credit facility with a bank to
finance the acquisition of Mimi’s. This credit facility
was paid in full on July 28, 2004, with the proceeds of a
private placement of $190 million in unsecured senior
notes. The senior notes mature over a period from July
2007 to July 2016, with a weighted-average interest rate
of 4.9% paid quarterly.

Payments of the company’s contractual obligations
under outstanding indebtedness as of April 28, 2006,
are as follows:

Payments Due By Period (in thousands)

Contractual 1 Year 2-3 4-5 After 5
Obligations (1) Total and Less Years Years Years

Operating

leases $310,134 $19,297 $38,720 $37,629 $214,488

Long-term

debt $210,333 $  4,000 $73,237 $53,809 $ 79,287

Interest

on debt (2) $  47,157 $10,622 $16,706 $10,358 $ 9,471

Purchase

obligations $ 37,871 $37,871 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

(1)The provisions of the company’s deferred compensation plans do not provide for specific
payment dates. Therefore, the obligations pursuant to the plans were excluded from this table.
The company’s deferred compensation obligations of $18.0 million were included in the
consolidated balance sheet at April 28, 2006, within long-term liabilities.

(2)All interest is at fixed rates as outlined in Note B of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The company believes that funds needed for capital
expenditures, working capital and treasury share purchases
during 2007 will be generated internally and from available
bank lines of credit. Additional financing alternatives will
continue to be evaluated by the company as warranted. At
the end of 2006, the company also had $11.3 million in
standby letters of credit for self-insurance plans and land
development agreements.

At April 28, 2006, the company had contractual
commitments for restaurant construction, plant equipment
additions and the purchases of land and inventory of
approximately $37.9 million. The company is reevaluating
its capital allocation plans, but currently expects capital
expenditures for 2007 to approximate $90 to $100 million
and depreciation and amortization expenses are expected
to approximate $78 million. The company plans to open
approximately 24 full-service restaurants, comprised of
approximately 10 Bob Evans Restaurants and approximately
14 Mimi’s Café restaurants in 2007, as well as upgrade var-
ious property, plant and equipment in both segments.
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The amounts of other contingent commercial
commitments by expiration period as of April 28, 2006,
are as follows:

Amount of Commitment Expiration
Per Period (in thousands)

Other Total
Commercial Amounts 1 Year 2-3 4-5 After 5

Commitments Committed and Less Years Years Years

Standby

letters

of credit $11,275 $9,775 $1,500 $ 0 $ 0

Lines

of credit 0 0 0 0 0

Total

commercial

commitments $11,275 $9,775 $1,500 $ 0 $ 0

Critical Accounting Policies

The company’s accounting policies are more fully
described in Note A of the Consolidated Financial
Statements. As discussed in Note A, the Consolidated
Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States, which require the company to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported. Actual
results could differ materially from those estimates. The
company believes that the following discussion addresses
the company’s most significant accounting policies, and
the following significant accounting policies may involve
a higher degree of judgment and complexity.

The company is self-insured for most casualty losses
up to certain stop-loss limits and fully self-insured for
most employee health-care claims. The company records
its best estimate of the remaining cost to settle incurred
self-insured casualty losses and employee health-care
claims. The recorded liability includes estimated reserves
for both reported claims and incurred but not reported
claims. Casualty loss estimates are based on the results of
independent actuarial studies and consider historical claim
frequency and severity as well as changes in factors such
as business environment, benefit levels, medical costs and
the regulatory environment that could impact overall
self-insurance costs. The employee health-care claims
reserve estimate is based on management’s review of
historical claims paid and the historical time lag between
the company’s incurred claims and when the claims are
paid. The company reviews the time lag periodically
throughout the fiscal year. Additionally, a risk margin to
cover unforeseen events that may occur over the several
years it takes for claims to settle is included in reserves,
which increases management’s confidence level that

the recorded reserve is adequate. Since there are many
estimates and assumptions involved in recording insurance
liabilities, differences between actual future events
and prior estimates and assumptions could result in
adjustments to these liabilities. However, management
believes that its calculation of insurance liabilities would
not change materially under different conditions and/or
different methods. Historically, the company has
been adequately reserved for self-insured losses and
the estimated reserves have proven to be sufficient for
actual claims settled. See Note F for a further discussion
of the company’s insurance programs.

Property, plant and equipment comprise 80% of
the company’s assets. Depreciation is recognized using
the straight-line and accelerated methods in amounts
adequate to amortize costs over the estimated useful
lives of depreciable assets (see Note A). The company
estimates useful lives on buildings and equipment based
on historical data and industry norms. Changes in
estimated useful lives could have a significant impact
on earnings. Additionally, testing for impairment of
long-lived assets, including definite life intangible assets,
requires significant management judgment regarding
future cash flows, asset lives and discount rates. Changes in
estimates could result in future impairment charges.

Long-term investments include investments in income
tax credit limited partnerships, recorded at amortized cost.
The company amortizes the investments to the estimated
residual value of the partnerships once the income tax
credits are fully utilized. The amortization period of
the investments matches the respective income tax credit
period. In 2006, the company changed the estimated
residual value assigned to the income tax credit limited
partnerships, which resulted in an additional charge to
amortization expense of $3.5 million.

The company has goodwill totaling $57.7 million and
other intangible assets of $56.6 million primarily as a
result of the Mimi’s acquisition and records the balances
in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. At the beginning of the fourth quarter
of 2006 and 2005, the company completed its annual
impairment tests required under the provisions of SFAS
No. 142. Factors used in the impairment tests include,
but are not limited to, management’s plans for future
operations, brand initiatives, recent operating results
and projected sales and cash flows. If future economic
conditions are different than those projected by
management, it is reasonably possible that impairment
charges my be required. After completing the tests, the
company determined that no impairment existed and
as a result, no impairment losses were recorded in 2006
or 2005.
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The company applies the recognition and measurement
principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”)
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,
in accounting for its stock-based compensation plans.
Accordingly, no compensation expense has been
recognized for stock options when the exercise price of the
options is equal to or greater than the fair market value of
the stock at the grant date. Net income in 2006, 2005 and
2004 would have been lower by $2.7 million, $5.4 million
and $4.1 million, respectively, if the company had applied
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based
compensation plans.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (R),
Share-Based Payment, which replaces SFAS No. 123 and
supersedes APB Opinion No. 25. SFAS No. 123 (R)
requires compensation costs related to share-based
payment transactions to be recognized in the financial
statements. With limited exceptions, the amount of
compensation cost will be measured based on the
fair value on the grant date of the equity or liability
instruments issued. Compensation cost will be recognized
over the period that an employee provides service for
that award.

The company will adopt SFAS No. 123 (R) in the first
quarter of 2007 using the modified-prospective approach.
Under the modified-prospective method, compensation
cost is recognized in the financial statements beginning
with the effective date of adoption, based on the require-
ment of SFAS No. 123 (R) for all share-based payments
granted after that date, and based on the requirements of
SFAS No. 123 for all unvested awards granted prior to the
effective date of SFAS No. 123 (R). The estimated impact
in 2007, based on unvested stock options outstanding at
April 28, 2006, is approximately $2.1 million. In anticipa-
tion of the adoption of SFAS No. 123 (R), the company has
adjusted the mix of employee incentive-based compensation
by significantly reducing the number of stock options that
will be awarded in the future and instead shifting more to
restricted stock awards and other cash-based compensation.

The company estimates certain components of its
provision for income taxes. These estimates include,
among other items, effective rates for state and local
income taxes, allowable tax credits for items such as
taxes paid on reported tip income, estimates related to
depreciation and amortization expense allowable for
tax purposes and the tax deductibility of certain other
items. The estimates are based on the best available
information at the time that the company prepares the
tax provision. The company generally files its annual
income tax returns several months after its fiscal year-end.
Income tax returns are subject to audit by federal, state
and local governments, generally years after the returns

are filed. These returns could be subject to material
adjustments or differing interpretations of the tax laws.

While the company’s recognition of revenue does not
generally involve significant judgment, the accounting
for unredeemed gift certificates and gift cards requires
estimation. The company recognizes income from gift
certificates and gift cards when they are redeemed by the
customer. In addition, the company recognizes income
on unredeemed gift certificates and gift cards only when
it can determine that the likelihood of the gift certificate
or gift card being redeemed is remote and that there is
no legal obligation to remit the amount of unredeemed
gift certificates or gift cards to relevant jurisdictions
(breakage). The company uses historical redemption
patterns to determine the breakage rate of Mimi’s gift cards.

Until April 2005, Bob Evans Restaurants issued gift
certificates with system limitations that precluded the
determination of the aging of unredeemed certificates, and
therefore breakage. In April 2005, Bob Evans Restaurants
discontinued issuing gift certificates and began issuing gift
cards. The company has the ability to track the usage pat-
terns and aging of these gift cards. The company continues
to monitor the monthly redemption rates of its unre-
deemed gift certificates. Subject to a thorough review of its
legal obligations, the company anticipates that in 2007 or
2008 it will be able to determine that the likelihood of
redemption of its remaining unredeemed gift certificates
will be remote and will recognize breakage on those gift
certificates at that time. It is not currently possible to
adequately estimate what that breakage amount will be;
however, subject to legal obligation requirements, it is rea-
sonably possible that the amount will be material to the
company’s quarterly results in the period recognized. The
company will begin recognizing breakage on Bob Evans
Restaurants’ gift cards when adequate historical data exists
to determine breakage rates.

From time to time in the normal course of business,
the company is subject to proceedings, lawsuits and other
claims. Management assesses the potential liabilities
related to any lawsuits or claims brought against the
company. While it is typically very difficult to determine
the timing and ultimate outcome of these actions,
management uses its best judgment to determine if it is
probable that the company will incur an expense related
to the settlement or final adjudication of such matters
and whether a reasonable estimation of such probable
loss, if any, can be made. Given the inherent uncertainty
related to the eventual outcome of litigation, it is possible
that all or some of these matters may be resolved for
amounts materially different from any provisions that the
company may have made with respect to their resolution.
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Management believes that the current reported
financial information may not be indicative of future
operating results. In addition, some level of business
risk and uncertainty is present in any industry; the
following documents some of the risks specific to both
operating segments.

Restaurant segment business risks include: competition,
concentration of Bob Evans Restaurants in the Midwest,
consumer acceptance, labor and fringe benefit expenses,
commodity prices, energy prices, restaurant closings,
governmental initiatives and other risks such as the
economy and weather.

The restaurant industry is an intensely competitive
environment that will continue to challenge and influence
the company’s restaurant segment. Competition from
restaurants in the quick service, casual dining and
family-style categories is significant. Increased numbers
of restaurants have provided more options for consumers
and have tended to suppress the industry’s same-store
sales. The industry has seen several restaurant chains
struggle to maintain market share and close substantial
numbers of locations. The changes in same-store sales
for Bob Evans Restaurants are as follows: (1.6)%, (3.6)%
and 1.2% in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The impact
of same-store sales on overall sales and corresponding
profit margins may be significant. All restaurants continue
to be evaluated by management in order to identify
underperforming locations. In 2006, 24 restaurants
were closed due to poor performance, including the
remaining Owens Restaurants in Texas. Depending
on profitability and factors specific to a location, the
company may close additional restaurants in 2007, but
the total is expected to be less than in 2006.

A significant portion of the company’s Bob Evans
Restaurants are concentrated in the Midwest, which has
experienced a worse unemployment rate and general
economic environment than the country as a whole.
Management believes that economic pressures on
Bob Evans Restaurants’ core customers, many of whom
may be under budget constraints, have impacted the
frequency of their visits to Bob Evans Restaurants. These
circumstances have significantly impacted Bob Evans
Restaurant same-store sales and reduced profitability, par-
ticularly compared to the company’s more geographically
diverse competitors.

Increases in federal or state minimum wage rates
may have an impact on future wage costs as Congress and
state legislatures consider increases to the rates currently
in effect.

Energy costs continued to rise in 2006. Management
expects the high prices to continue in 2007. The
company will closely monitor energy costs and evaluate
all options carefully.

Availability of sites and weather conditions impact
the timing of future expansion. However, the company
plans to open approximately 24 full-service restaurants,
including approximately 10 Bob Evans Restaurants and
approximately 14 Mimi’s Café restaurants in fiscal 2007 in
comparison to 20 Bob Evans Restaurants and 10 Mimi’s
Café restaurants in 2006 and 37 Bob Evans Restaurants
and 11 Mimi’s Café restaurants in 2005.

Food products segment business risks include: hog
costs, governmental initiatives and other risks such as the
economy, weather and consumer acceptance. The prices
to be paid in the live hog market have always been
an uncertainty for the food products segment as was
evidenced in the last three years. Hog costs averaged
$43.26, $50.60 and $37.99 per hundredweight in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Trends at the beginning
of 2007 lead management to believe that hog costs will
be roughly $40.00 per hundredweight in 2007.

Another uncertainty is the consumer acceptance of
new items. Some of the planned introductions in 2007
for the food products segment include Express sausage
patties, meat loaf and beef stew refrigerated entrees, and
frozen, pre-baked breakfast breads.

The restaurant and food products segments share
various risks and uncertainties. Food safety is an issue
that has taken precedence: risk of food contamination is
an issue focused on by the company at its restaurants as
well as in the manufacturing and distribution of its food
products. The company has continued its emphasis
on quality control programs that limit the company’s
exposure, including compliance with all aspects of the
Hazard Analysis of Critical Control Points program.
Increased government initiatives at the local, state and
federal levels tend to increase costs and present challenges
to management in both segments of the business.
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SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

Statements in this report that are not historical facts are

forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements involve vari-

ous important assumptions, risks and uncertainties. Actual results

may differ materially from those predicted by the forward-looking

statements because of various factors and possible events, including,

without limitation:

• Changing business and/or economic conditions, including

energy costs,

• Competition in the restaurant and food products industries,

• Ability to control restaurant operating costs, which are impacted

by market changes in the cost or availability of labor and food,

minimum wage and other employment laws, fuel and utility

costs and general inflation,

• Changes in the cost or availability of acceptable new

restaurant sites,

• Accurately assessing the value, future growth potential, strengths,

weaknesses, contingent and other liabilities and potential

profitability of Mimi’s Café,

• Adverse weather conditions in locations where the company

operates its restaurants,

• Consumer acceptance of changes in menu, price, atmosphere

and/or service procedures,

• Consumer acceptance of the company’s restaurant concepts

in new geographic areas and

• Changes in hog and other commodity costs.

There is also the risk that the company may incorrectly analyze

these risks or that the strategies developed by the company to

address them will be unsuccessful.

Certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions are discussed here

and under the heading “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of the company’s

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 28, 2006.

It is impossible to predict or identify all such risk factors. Consequently,

no one should consider any such list to be a complete set of all potential

risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements speak only as of

the date on which they are made, and the company undertakes no

obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect circum-

stances or events that occur after the date on which the statement is

made to reflect unanticipated events. Any further disclosures in the

company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission

should also be consulted. All subsequent written and oral forward-

looking statements attributable to the company or any person acting

on behalf of the company are qualified by the cautionary statements

in this section.

Management’s Discussion of Risk Factors
Bob Evans Farms, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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President and Chief Executive Officer,
White Castle System, Inc.

Cheryl L. Krueger
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Cheryl & Co.

G. Robert Lucas
Trustee,
The Jeffrey Trusts

Robert E.H. Rabold 
Chairman of the Board,
Bob Evans Farms, Inc.

Executive Officers

Russell W. Bendel
President and Chief Executive Officer
of Mimi’s Café

Mary L. Cusick
Senior Vice President of
Restaurant Marketing

Steven A. Davis
Chief Executive Officer,
Bob Evans Farms, Inc.

Joe L. Gillen
Senior Vice President of
Bob Evans Restaurant Operations

Randall L. Hicks
Executive Vice President of
Bob Evans Restaurant Operations

James S. Merchant, Jr.
Senior Vice President of
Bob Evans Restaurant Operations

Donald J. Radkoski 
Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary 

Tod P. Spornhauer
Senior Vice President of Finance and
Controller

Roger D. Williams
Executive Vice President of Food
Products Division

Other Senior Officers

Larry R. Beckwith
Senior Vice President of
Administration and
Information Systems

L. Merl Beery
Senior Vice President of Restaurant
Purchasing and Technical Services

R. Earl Beery
Senior Vice President of Food
Products Operations

John F. Curry
Senior Vice President of
Restaurant Development

Anton G. (Skip) Larson
Senior Vice President of Sales,
Food Products Division

J. Michael Townsley
President and
Chief Operating Officer,
Owens Food Products

Stephen A. Warehime
Senior Vice President,
Director of Real Estate

As of June 1, 2006



Corporate Office

Bob Evans Farms, Inc.
3776 S. High St.
Columbus, Ohio 43207
(800) 272-7675
www.bobevans.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Bob Evans Farms, Inc.
Attention: Stock Transfer Department
3776 S. High St.
Columbus, Ohio 43207
(614) 492-4952

For online stockholder account access, go to
www.bobevans.com. Click on “Investors” and then
“Stockholder Account Access.”

Contact transfer agent and registrar for information
regarding the following:

• Stockholder inquiries such as address changes, transfer of
shares, lost certificates and dividends.

• Copies of the annual report and/or Form 10-K at no charge.
The annual report, proxy and Form 10-K are also available
in the “Investors” section of the company’s Web site,
www.bobevans.com. Stockholders of record may elect to
receive future proxy materials electronically to expedite
delivery and to reduce paper usage and mailing costs. If you
would like to enroll in electronic proxy delivery, go to the
“Investors” section of our Web site and select “electronic
delivery.” Next year, you will receive an e-mail with a link to
our proxy statement, annual report and electronic voting site.

• Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
Stockholders of record may reinvest their cash dividends
in additional shares of Bob Evans Farms, Inc. common
stock at market price without the payment of brokerage
commissions, service charges and other expenses.
Stockholders may also make voluntary cash payments
through check, money order or automatic monthly fund
transfers at market price. Individuals who are not currently
stockholders may make a limited initial investment. A
prospectus and enrollment form may also be obtained
from the company’s Web site, www.bobevans.com, in the
“Investors” section under “DRIP and Stock Purchase Plans.”

• Direct Dividend Deposit Program
Stockholders may have their quarterly dividends deposited
to their bank accounts on the payment date for immediate
access to their dividends.

Analyst Inquiries/Investor Relations

Contact Tammy Roberts Myers, director of
investor relations and corporate communications,
at (614) 492-4954.

Stock Listing

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Monday, Sept. 11, 2006, 9 a.m. at the Southern Theatre,
21 E. Main St., Columbus, Ohio

Quarterly Earnings

Bob Evans Farms plans to report 2007 quarterly results in
mid-August, mid-November, mid-February and early
June. Specific release dates and information regarding
conference calls and webcasts during which the earnings
will be discussed are available in the “Investors” section of
the company’s Web site, www.bobevans.com.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Ernst & Young LLP
1100 Huntington Center
41 S. High St.
Columbus, Ohio 43215

Legal Counsel

Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP
52 E. Gay St.
P.O. Box 1008
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1008

Company News and Corporate Governance

For access to the latest Bob Evans Farms, Inc. earnings
and dividend news releases and general information,
please refer to the company’s Web site, www.bobevans.com.
Board committee charters, governance principles and the
company’s Code of Conduct are also available on the Web
site in the “Investors” section under “Corporate Governance.”

Company Information

�

�

Trading symbol BOBE on the Nasdaq Global Select Market
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